1965

Virgil Redmond and Ed Delyle v. City Court of Salt Lake City, J. Patton Neeley, City Judge, Warren M. Weggeland, Deputy Salt Lake County Attorney :  
Appellant's Brief

### STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

Suit for writ of Mandamus to compel Salt Lake City Judge to dismiss a criminal complaint against Appellants because of failure of Prosecutor to furnish a Bill of Particulars ordered by the City Court, or in the alternative to order prosecutor to furnish said Bill of Particulars.

### DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

District Court refused to grant relief requested and dismissed suit for mandamus with prejudice.

## RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiffs seek reversal of order dismissing suit for Mandamus and for an order requiring dismissal of the criminal complaint filed against the Plaintiffs in the City Court, or in the alternative for an order requiring the said Bill of Particulars to be furnished.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

Both Appellants were charged with issuing a fictitious check in a complaint issued by the City Court of Salt Lake City. (R 1)

At their arraignment in the City Court, Appellants filed a written motion for a Bill of Particulars. (R. 3, 18) The City Judge ordered the prosecution to furnish Appellants with documents and other information demanded in the motion. (R. 3, 18, 45). The Bill of Particulars furnished by the Prosecution is merely a restatement of the allegations of the complaint and a refusal to furnish the information and documents which the Court ordered to be furnished, except that a copy of the check mentioned in the complaint was furnished to Appellants.

Although the complaint filed in the City Court against Appellants involves only one check, that check is only one of a series of forty or fifty checks which appear to have been uttered by the same person. (R. 43) All of said checks were drawn on the same bank account, were made payable to the same persons, bore the same approximate dates, were for approximately the same amount, were endorsed by the same person, were countersigned by use of the same drivers license for identification, were part of a numerical sequence, and appear to have come

from the same pre-numbered check book. (R. 51, 52, 53)

The police appear to have gathered up all of the checks issued in this series, together with the bank signature cards, bank records concerning the bank account, returned checks which were deposited to open that bank account, and other documents demanded in the Bill of Particulars. The Prosecutor first agreed to furnish Appellants with copies of the requested documents and then refused to do so or to permit Appellants to inspect or copy said documents. (R. 52) They have admitted that they have them in their possession. (R. 52, 53)

Because the Prosecution has gathered up the evidence needed by Appellants to learn the identity of person who cashed the checks and needed to submit to hand-writing experts to identify the persons who actually uttered and cashed the checks in question. (R. 48, 50), the Appellants are unable to prepare evidence necessary for them to present at the preliminary hearing to show that no probable cause exists upon which they could be bound over to the District Court for trial.

Appellants filed in the City Court, a motion to quash the complaint in accordance with the provision of 77-11-1 and 77-23-3, UCA, 1953, or in the alternative to compel the Prosecution to furnish the Bill of Particulars ordered furnished by the Court. (R. 12, 13) This motion was heard and denied by a different City Judge. Appellants then brought this action for a Writ of Mandamus to compel the Court to quash the complaint or require the Bill of Particulars to be furnished, and the The District Court refused to grant the relief requested. From that order this appeal is prosecuted.



The information sought in the Bill of Particulars is not a preview of the prosecution's evidence pertaining to the alleged fictitious check mentioned in the complaint but is evidence and facts which would ordinarily be available to Appellants but for the act of the prosecution and the police department in gathering up that evidence so that it is not now available to Appellants. (R. 48, 50)

Respondents have admitted in their answer to the complaint filed herein that the order requiring the prosecution to furnish the Bill of Particulars is still in full force and effect and was not overruled by the order of the second Judge which denied Appellants' motion to quash, etc., and Respondents allege that the Bill of Particulars furnished by them complied with the order of the Court, notwithstanding the fact that it was merely a refusal to comply with that order.

## POINT I

### ARGUMENT

**APPELLANTS ARE ENTITLED TO AN ORDER QUASHING THE COMPLAINT BECAUSE OF FAILURE OF PROSECUTION TO FURNISH BILL OF PARTICULARS ORDERED BY THE COURT.**

The City Court ordered the Prosecution to furnish the Bill of Particulars demanded by Appellants. The Bill of Particulars furnished by the Prosecution constitutes a restatement of the wording of the complaint, a photocopy of the check mentioned in that complaint, together with the following statement in (lieu) of furnishing the information demanded in questions 2 and 3 of the de

mand for a Bill of Particulars:

"Plaintiff refuses to answer questions No. 2 (No. 3) in that defendant requests matters which are evidentiary and beyond the scope of a Bill of Particulars."

Appellants are entitled to the information which they demanded in their motion for a Bill of Particulars and which the Court ordered the Prosecution to furnish, as indicated in 77-21-9, UCA, 1953, (which statute is made applicable to complaints by the last paragraph of 77-11-1, UCA, 1953, see also *State v. Gunn* 102 U—422 132 P2d 109 (1942); *State v. Solomon* 93U70, 71 P2d 104 (1937) which statute reads in part as follows:

**"77-21-9, BILL OF PARTICULARS.**-(1) When an information or indictment charges an offense in accordance with the provision of section 77-21-9 but fails to inform the defendant of the particulars of the offense, sufficiently to enable him to prepare his defense, or to give him such information as he is entitled under the Constitution of this state, the court may, of its own motion, and shall at the request of the defendant, order the prosecuting attorney to furnish a bill of particulars containing such information as may be necessary for these purposes; or the prosecuting attorney may of his own motion furnish such bill of particulars.

(2) When the court deems it to be in the interest of justice that facts not set out in the information or indictment or in any previous Bill of particulars should be furnished to the defendant, it may order the prosecuting attorney to furnish a bill of particulars containing such facts. In determining whether such facts and, if so, what facts, should be furnished, the court shall consider the whole record and the entire course of the proceedings against the defend-

ant . . . . ”

(Emphasis added)

It should be noted that the foregoing statute vests in the Judge the discretion of determining what “facts” should be furnished in a Bill of Particulars in each case, and what “particulars” are necessary to enable the accused to prepare his defense. In addition, when the “interest of justice” requires that “facts” available to the Prosecutor be furnished to the Defendant the Court may order the Bill of Particulars. The statute further sets a standard to be used by the Judge in exercising that discretion in ordering or refusing to order a given Bill of Particulars. *State v. Faux*, 9 U. 2d 350, 345 P2 186 (1959). It is in the sound discretion of the Court to determine if the accused should be allowed to obtain evidence in the possession of the prosecution. *State v. Lack*, 118 U. 128, 221 P. 2d 852 (1950). We must assume that in exercising its discretion the City Court Judge, who ordered the Bill of Particulars, complied with the requirements of 77-21-9, UCA, 1953, and, accordingly, that the Prosecution should be required to furnish the Bill of Particulars. In discretionary matters of this type, this Court should not substitute its opinion for that of the trial Judge unless there is a clear abuse of discretion by the lower court.

Appellants assert that they are innocent of the charges contained in the complaint filed in the City Court. It cannot be reasonable or rightfully asserted that the documents and other information ordered furnished to Appellants in the Bill of Particulars is not necessary for the preparation of a defense, or that the interest of justice does not require that said information be furnished to

Appellants. This information is in fact necessary to learn the identity of persons who can identify the persons who actually cashed the checks in question and to furnish an adequate number of handwriting specimens to a handwriting expert for him to form an opinion as to the identity of the person or persons who uttered the checks in question. Whenever a person is charged with an offense which may result in a fine or imprisonment, justice requires that he be given information to show his innocence.

The uncontradicted fact is that the prosecutor wilfully refused to comply with the order which required him to furnish the Bill of Particulars, which order the prosecution admits to still be in full force and effect. (R. 18) The remedy available to a Defendant who has not been furnished with a sufficient Bill of Particulars when one has been ordered is set out in 77-23-3, UCA, 1953 (Which statute is made applicable to complaints by the last paragraph of 77-11-1, UCA, 77-21-1 1953) and which statute was the basis of the motion to quash filed by Appellants, which reads in part as follow:

**"77-23-3, MOTION TO QUASH-GROUNDS-A motion to quash the information or indictment shall be available only on one or more of the following grounds. In the case of:**

**(1) Either an information or indictment:**

**(a) . . .**

**(b) *That the court has ordered a bill of Particulars under the provisions of section 77-21-9 and the prosecuting attorney fails to furnish a sufficient bill. . .***

**(Emphasis added)**

Appellants are not seeking an order compelling a Bill Particulars. Such an order has been issued in the sound discretion of the City Court and is still in full force and effect. Appellants motions seeks an order quashing the complaint, or in the alternative an order compelling the prosecution to comply with the existing order of the Court for a Bill of Particulars. The language quoted above is quite emphatic concerning quashing of a complaint in the event of failure of the prosecution to furnish a "sufficient" Bill of Particulars. It is manditory, and the Appellants are entitled, as a matter of law, to an order quashing the complaint.

The prosecution admits that it has in its possession all of the documents subpoenaed by the Appellants and that the documents subpoenaed are the same as those demanded in the Bill of Particulars. (R. 52, 53). Because they have gathered up all these documents, the Appellants have no other source from which to obtain them. Where information is not otherwise available to an accused, it is a clear case where justice demands that it be furnished so that an adequate defense can be presented.

## POINT II

### REFUSAL TO FURNISH BILL OF PARTICULARS IS A DENIAL OF DUE PROCESS OF LAW.

The purpose of a preliminary hearing is to determine if there is sufficient cause to believe that there has been an offense committed and to believe that the accused is guilty thereof and accordingly should be held to answer thereto in the District Court. 77-15-17 and 77-15-19, UCA,

1953. The accused is entitled to present witnesses and evidence on his own behalf at a preliminary hearing to show that no probable cause exists. 77-15-11, UCA, 1953.

It would be a useless formality and a denial of due process of law to hold a preliminary hearing if the accused were prevented from presenting evidence and testimony on his own behalf to explain the accusations and evidence appearing against him. 16 Am. Jur. 2nd, *Const. Law.*, Sec. 578. It would clearly be a denial of due process to require the Appellants to be present at a preliminary hearing when evidence necessary to prepare their defense has been gathered up by the prosecution and withheld so that they cannot learn the names of witnesses who might testify as to the identity of the real criminals or who might testify as to the appellants innocence. If prejudice to the preparation of a defense is shown resulting from failure to furnish a bill of particulars, the accused who has been denied that bill has been denied due process of law. *Van Dam v. United States*, 23 Fed. 2nd 235; (1928) *Leland v. Oregon*, 343 U.S. 790, 96 L. ed. 1302, (1952)

The term "due process of law" is a fundamental principal of justice rather than a specific rule of law and is not susceptible of more than a general statement of its intent and meaning; accordingly, each case must be determined according to the reasonableness of the action taken by the prosecution, the injury to the accused resulting therefrom, and whether it is necessary for the information in the possession of the prosecution to be disclosed to the accused so that he has an opportunity to show that it is untrue. 16 Am. Jur. 2nd., *Const. Law*, Sec. 340 A 51 C 545, 578.

## POINT III

THE FUNDAMENTAL OBJECTIVE OF THE PROSECUTION IN A CRIMINAL CASE IS TO SEEK THE TRUTH AND TO ADMINISTER JUSTICE AND NOT SOLELY TO CONVICT.

Although the prosecution prepared an instrument entitled "Bill of Particulars," it was completely insufficient. Furnishing of the checks and other documents ordered by the court was completely refused except for the one check mentioned in the complaint. If the prosecution has a sufficiently strong case to justify prosecution, it would not be weakened by disclosure of this evidence. If their case is weak and it is necessary to conceal evidence to present a prima facie case, then the case should not have been filed.

It is well recognized that it is the duty of the prosecutor in a criminal case to seek justice and to see that fairness reigns. It is the duty of the state to seek the truth rather than to achieve a record of indiscriminate conviction by concealment and surprise. A.B.A., *Canons of Professional Ethics*, Canon 5

The attorney General of the state of Utah has by statute been given the power and duty of supervisory control over county attorneys in the state in their official duties 67-5-1 (5) UCA, 1953. In exercising this power the attorney general recently (May 21, 1965) issued a directive to the Salt Lake County Attorney and others concerning disclosure of evidence favorable to the accused. The full text of this directive is as follows:

"To all District Attorneys, County Attorneys

## Sheriffs, and Chiefs of Police:

It was announced this day through the news media that an assistant attorney general from this office reported yesterday before the Utah State Council on Criminal Justice Administration that it would be unethical for a defense counsel to approach a policeman assisting in a prosecution . . . that is was a type of client-counsel relationship.

This directive is to inform your office of the correct position assumed by this office with respect to this general area of the law.

There is absolutely no canon of ethics to prevent such contact between policeman and defense counsel.

There is absolutely no client-counsel relationship between policeman and prosecutor.

The policeman in such a capacity is nothing more than a witness. And no prosecutor owns any witness.

A witness is a person who is to testify as to facts—truthfully—as he has perceived them—no matter who calls him as a witness. No honest witness will testify that the facts are one way for the prosecution, another way for the defense.

Too often it appears that prosecutors regard themselves as partisan attorneys, justified in excluding evidence of matters favorable to the accused, and in introducing all evidence which could, by any possibility, be unfavorable to the accused.

But while a prosecuting attorney is justified in bringing out all the facts which tend to establish the guilt of the accused, he has no right to misrepresent facts or to create false impressions in the mind of the jurors.

Prosecutors represent the people, and should endeavor to see, not only that an accused person is convicted, but also that the facts are fully and fairly placed before the jury.



It must be remembered that a fundamentally American concept of the law is that any person accused of having committed a crime has the constitutional presumption of innocence.

No person is guilty of a crime in this county until he is proved guilty beyond a reasonable doubt.

If the prosecutor has sufficient legal evidence to prove an accused guilty beyond a reasonable doubt, what harm to the prosecution could result by a disclosure of those facts?

And, if the prosecutor does not have sufficient legal evidence to prove an accused guilty beyond a reasonable doubt, he should not prosecute.

Another constitutional right afforded an accused is that he be confronted by his accusers.

For this right to be meaningful, and not an empty play on words, the defense counsel must be able to interrogate those accusers and all witnesses with factual information before the actual courtroom confrontation. Otherwise, the accused might well be deprived of a still further constitutional right, that of being represented by counsel. For, in any reasonable fair and logical approach, an unprepared counsel is tantamount to no counsel.

Besides, it is a law in Utah that the accused be informed of all witnesses against him. What sense would that law make if those witnesses could not be interrogated? Absolutely none. So how could a defense counsel be unethical by confronting those witnesses?

American justice should not be decided by a game of chance, surprise, trickery, gimmick—anything short of full disclosure, complete fairness, and impartial witness—have no place whatsoever in the

procedural machinery that potentially could deprive one of our citizens of his life or liberty.

The prosecution has almost every advantage. It has its own policemen, investigators, lawyers, experts, chemist, photographers, doctors, engineers, and unlimited money for preparation.

An indigent accused has practically none of these to use in his defense. Only recently has Utah had even a taste of public approach to this problem.

A giant step forward has been taken by the formation of the Salt Lake Legal Defenders Association and the appointment of the very capable defense lawyer, Jimi Mitsunaga, as its director.

This trial program, afforded by a grant from the Ford Foundation must be supported and given every reasonable opportunity to prove its value for continuation if the State of Utah is to pride itself with any sense of fair play toward an accused.

*Toward this end, it is hereby suggested to you and the members of your organization by this office, as the Chief Law Enforcement Officer of the State of Utah and as supervisor of all county attorneys and district attorneys, that you adopt the above philosophy by discarding the concept of "cat and Mouse."*

*Please make available to all defense counsel the names and addresses of all witness of a case known to the prosecution, copies of all statements and photographs, exposure to examination of all physical evidence, and any other available factual information concerning the case.*

This Directive and Suggested Procedure might well seem drastic and severe to the dogmatic adversary of the game "Button, Button, Who's Got the Button?"

But to the believer in the cherished words of the United States Constitution, it is no more than what has been long overdue. It is no more than compliance with the law.

Surprisingly, perhaps-but inevitable, indeed-such a procedure will breed respect for the law, avoid crime behind a badge of authority, and aid in the reduction of the alarming increase in the crime rate of our nation.

Let us communicate often and be of assistance to each other."

(Emphasis added)

The trend in the law is definately toward more liberal discovery procedure in criminal cases. Permitting a liberal discovery will "enhance, rather than diminish, the dignity of the administration of law" and is "in accord with enlightened administration of criminal justice. *U.S. v. Peace*, 16 F.R.D. 423 (1954). In a recent Utah case this Court permitted an accused to inspect the transcript of the Grand Jury hearing for purpose of impeachment of witnesses at the trial. In that decision the Court stated that:

"the rights of an accused of a crime are in no wise to be belittled nor ignored. The fundamental purpose of a criminal trial is not solely to convict but to seek the truth and administer justice." *State v. Faux*, 9 U. 2d 350, 345 P. 2d 186 (1959)

The City Court recognized the need of the Appellants to secure the documents in question and ordered the Bill of Particulars. However, the prosecution without a valid reason continues to withhold it. This policy certainly is not in accord with the "enlightened rules of criminal justice."

## CONCLUSION

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