1965

Virgil Redmond and Ed Delyle v. City Court of Salt Lake City, J. Patton Neeley, City Judge, Warren M. Weggeland, Deputy Salt Lake County Attorney :  
Brief of Respondents

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

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

THE APPELLANT VIRGIL REDMOND HAS NO BASIS FOR APPEAL SINCE THE DEMAND FOR A BILL OF PARTICULARS, WHICH IS THE SUBJECT OF THIS APPEAL, WAS FILED BY ED DeLYLE AND DID NOT PURPORT TO BE ON BEHALF OF VIRGIL REDMOND.

It is submitted that the appellant Virgil Redmond has no standing to seek appellate review. The demand for the bill of particulars, which was filed in the City Court of Salt Lake City and which is the subject of the instant appeal, recites that the demand was filed by E. DeLyle, and is so phrased and stated in the singular as to show that Virgil Redmond was not a party concerned with the demand. Although the complaint, as filed in the District Court, seeking extraordinary relief, named Virgil Redmond as a plaintiff, it is apparent that the cause of action as it pertained to him is unrelated to the demand for a bill of particulars. The appellant Virgil Redmond, having no interest in the litigation as respects the bill of particulars and having failed to expressly include himself within the ambit of the demand for the bill of particulars, is precluded from seeking appellate relief. *State v. Bleazard*, 103 Utah 113, 133 P. 2d 1000.

## POINT II

### THE POSTURE OF THIS CASE IS SUCH THAT MANDAMUS IS NOT AN APPROPRIATE REMEDY.

In the appellants' brief, it is indicated that a writ of mandamus was sought to compel the respondents to furnish a bill of particulars and that the District Court denied the claim. To the extent that Judge Neeley of the City Court of Salt Lake City is named as a party defendant, the writ of mandamus would be to compel the judge to, in turn, compel the County Attorney to file the bill of particulars or, in the alternative, to dismiss the action. To the extent that the Deputy Salt Lake County

Attorney is a party defendant, the writ of mandamus could only be for the purpose of compelling answers to a demand for a bill of particulars. It is submitted that on the posture of the instant case, mandamus will not lie.

When the appellant Ed DeLyle filed his demand for a bill of particulars, the County Attorney responded to question No. 1 of the demand. That question asked for a substantial amount of information relating to the offense charged. The District Court and the City Court ruled that the bill of particulars filed by the County Attorney substantially complied with the demand. Since neither the bill of particulars nor the complaint in the case against Ed DeLyle have been included in the record on appeal, it must be assumed that the record below would substantiate the District Court's and the City Court's determinations. *Watkins v. Simmons*, 14 U. 2d 406, 385 P. 2d 154 (1963); *Baine v. Beckstead*, 10 U. 2d 4, 347 P. 2d 554 (1954). Thus, the issue before this court is whether there is a need for the additional information requested in questions No. 2 and No. 3 of the demand for a bill of particulars. It must be assumed, since the trial court so found, that the facts now known to the appellants properly apprised Ed DeLyle of the nature of the offense charged and have been sufficiently and specifically detailed so as to allow him to prepare his defense and to protect him from claims of jeopardy.

Section 77-21-9, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, relating to a bill of particulars, provides:

"(1) When an information or indictment charges an offense in accordance with the pro-

visions of section 77-21-8, but fails to inform the defendant of the particulars of the offense sufficiently to enable him to prepare his defense or to give him such information as he is entitled to under the Constitution of this state, the court may, of its own motion, and shall at the request of the defendant, order the prosecuting attorney to furnish a bill of particulars containing such information as may be necessary for these purposes; or the prosecuting attorney may of his own motion furnish such bill of particulars.

“(2) When the court deems it to be in the interest of justice that facts not set out in the information or indictment or in any previous bill of particulars should be furnished to the defendant, it may order the prosecuting attorney to furnish a bill of particulars containing such facts. In determining whether such facts and, if so, what facts, should be so furnished, the court shall consider the whole record and the entire course of the proceedings against the defendant.

“(3) Supplemental bills of particulars or a new bill may be ordered by the court or furnished voluntarily under the conditions above stated.

“(4) Each supplemental bill shall operate to amend any and all previous bills and a new bill shall supersede any previous bill.

“(5) When any bill of particulars is furnished it shall be filed of record and a copy of such bill be given to the defendant.”

It is apparent that since a bill of particulars has been provided, what the appellants now seek is additional information under Subsection (2) of the above Section 77-21-9. It is acknowledged that in *State v. Solomon*, 5 Utah 70, 71 P. 2d 104 (1937), the Utah Supreme Court

in referring to the predecessor of Section 77-21-9, stated that the granting of a bill of particulars is not discretionary with the court as it was at common law, but is a right which defendant can demand. However, the court in that case noted that the statutory conditions must be present. Further, the particular issue before the court in the *Solomon* case involved the use of a bill of particulars only as a supplement to the short form of information and not the question of successive bills or additional information that the defendant may deem desirable. Further, the statement in the *Solomon* case is dicta since the real issue was whether the bill of particulars was a part of the information or indictment. The court, in discussing the bill of particulars in that case, paraphrased the statutory language appearing in Subsection 1 of Section 77-21-9, for it said:

“ \* \* \* The chief purpose in prescribing a short-form information was to get away entirely from the needless formalism and verbosity usual in criminal pleadings and the consequent reversals by courts on so-called technical grounds. The pleader had been too often held to strict nicety in stating the elements of the crime and the particulars thereof. The Legislature further intended to fully safeguard the rights of defendants by providing that the court shall direct the filing of a bill of particulars where the information does not give the defendant the particulars of the offense sufficiently to enable him to prepare his defense or give such information as he is entitled to under the Constitution of the state.”

If the appellants, under the posture of this case, are entitled to the information sought in questions No. 2 and

No. 3 of the demand by Ed DeLyle, it should only be pursuant to Subsections (2) and (3) of Section 77-21-5. Both of these subsections provide that the court may, if it finds it in the interest of justice, grant the defendant the right to additional information and order supplemental bills of particulars. Thus, the power to be exercised under these subsections is discretionary with the court.

It is well settled that mandamus is not an available remedy to compel a discretionary act. *State v. Hart*, 1 Utah 438, 57 Pac. 415. In *Ketchum Coal Co. v. Christensen*, 48 Utah 214, 159 Pac. 541, this court observed that an appellate tribunal may not direct nor control the discretion vested in inferior courts by use of the writ of mandamus. See also *Richards v. District Court of Weber County*, 71 Utah 473, 267 Pac. 779; *Hathaway v. McKelvie*, 85 Utah 21, 38 P. 2d 300. Therefore, in this case mandamus will not lie to direct the City Court of Salt Lake City to compel the filing of additional bills of particulars.

Legal precedent appears to support the proposition that where the granting of a bill of particulars is discretionary, mandamus may not issue to compel a lower tribunal to require a bill of particulars. *State ex rel Drew v. Shaughnessy*, 212 Wisc. 322, 249 N.W. 522; 35 Am. Jur. *Mandamus*, Sec. 295; 55 C.J.S., 55 C.J.S., *Mandamus* Sec. 15b, p. 191.

Additionally, it should be noted that normally the determination of whether to grant a motion to quash is

information or indictment rests in the sound discretion of the trial court, barring some mandatory, statutory, or judicial requirement. Although Section 77-23-3(1)(b), T.C.A., 1953, allows a court to grant a motion to quash where a prosecuting attorney has failed to provide a sufficient bill of particulars, this section appears limited to informations and indictments. Even so, in this case, a determination has been made, by two inferior tribunals, that compliance with the demand has been sufficient and, as noted above, the giving of the additional information sought is purely discretionary with the court. 27 Am. Jur. *Indictments and Informations*, Sec. 143, notes:

"A motion to quash is generally addressed to the sound discretion of the court, the guiding rule in the disposal of the motion being whether prejudice may result to the accused from denial of the motion."

Obviously, therefore, mandamus is not an appropriate remedy for either of the alternatives sought by the appellants.

Finally, it is submitted that since, as will be shown later, the information demanded is evidentiary and outside the scope of a bill of particulars, it could hardly be argued that mandamus should lie to expand the use beyond recognized statutory and judicial limits. The complaint for mandamus was, therefore, procedurally defective and the writ should be denied.

### POINT III

THE APPELLANTS HAVE NO RIGHT TO RELIEF SINCE:

- (a) THE REQUESTED INFORMATION IS OUTSIDE THE SCOPE OF A BILL OF PARTICULARS.
- (b) DUE PROCESS DOES NOT COMPEL THE INFORMATION REQUESTED.

(a) The information sought in the demand for bill of particulars filed by Ed DeLyle which was not supplied by the County Attorney is not information necessary to inform the appellants of the charge against them. Question No. 2 asks for evidentiary information and question No. 3 asks for the production of documents. The request for the production of documents does not specify with any particularity those things sought, and many of the items apparently are not in the possession of the County Attorney. Appellants, therefore, have endeavored to use the bill of particulars as an evidentiary device. In *State v. Lack*, 118 Utah 128, 22 P. 2d 852 (1950), this court observed that a bill of particulars was not available as a discovery device, stating

"Sec. [77-21-9, U.C.A. 1953] was designed to enable a defendant to have stated the particulars of the charge which he must meet, where the short form of indictment or information is used. It was not intended as a device to compel the prosecution to give an accused person a preview of the evidence on which the state relies to sustain the charge."



In *State v. Jameson*, 103 Utah 129, 134 P. 2d 173 (1943), this court stated:

"He demanded a further bill of particulars showing the exact time, the exact place, whether in or out of a car, and what other person, if any, was present. The court did not err in refusing this request. The purpose of a bill of particulars is to inform the defendant of the particulars of the offense sufficiently to enable him to prepare his defense. Laws of Utah 1935, c. 118, 105-21-9. The bill of particulars furnished informed him of the nature of the offense, the time and place of its commission, and was therefore sufficient. The bill of particulars need not plead matters of evidence."

The trial court found the complaint with the additional information supplied by the prosecution to be sufficient to appraise the appellants of the nature of the accusation. It is uniformly settled that a bill of particulars may not be used as a means of gaining information concerning the prosecution's evidence. *Abbott, Criminal Trial Practice*, 4th Ed., Sec. 64; *Moreland, Modern Criminal Procedure* (1958), p. 213, 214. In an annotation in 5 A.L.R. 2d 444, at page 457, it is stated:

"The particulars sought by an accused often are such that the furnishing of them would amount to a disclosure of the prosecution's evidence. In some instances the demand is obviously an exploratory maneuver. Except in those cases in which such information is essential to the accused in order to enable him to prepare his defense, the courts are not inclined to favor the granting of such particulars."

Since the information sought is beyond the scope of the bill of particulars, the appellants have no claim for relief.

(b) The appellants' contention that the denial of the bill of particulars operates to violate due process of law is without merit. The information supplied by the prosecution amply apprises the appellants of the charges against them. This is all that a bill of particulars requires. Additional discovery may be available to the appellants at the time of preliminary hearing or through other procedural devices. Even so, it is clear that there is no merit to the due process argument. In *Leland v. Oregon*, 343 U. S. 790 (1952), the United States Supreme Court passed upon the refusal of a state trial court to require the district attorney to make available the defendant's confession to the crime charged. In *Cicenia v. LaGay*, 357 U. S. 504 (1958), the same issue was passed upon by the United States Supreme Court and again the contention, that the failure to allow inspection prior to trial violated due process, was rejected. The court observed:

" \* \* \* He argues that he was deprived of due process because New Jersey required him to plead to the indictment for murder without the opportunity to inspect his confession.

"The Fourteenth Amendment does not read so far. As stated by the Supreme Court of New Jersey in the earlier proceedings in this case, 6 N.J. 296, 25 299-301, 78 A2d 568, at 570, 571, the rule in that State is that the trial judge has discretion whether or not to allow inspection before trial. This is consistent with the practice in many other jurisdictions. See, e. g., *State v. Haas*, 188 Md. 63, 51 A.2d 647; *People v. Skoyec*, 183 W.2d 100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, 114, 115, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 122, 123, 124, 125, 126, 127, 128, 129, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134, 135, 136, 137, 138, 139, 140, 141, 142, 143, 144, 145, 146, 147, 148, 149, 150, 151, 152, 153, 154, 155, 156, 157, 158, 159, 160, 161, 162, 163, 164, 165, 166, 167, 168, 169, 170, 171, 172, 173, 174, 175, 176, 177, 178, 179, 180, 181, 182, 183, 184, 185, 186, 187, 188, 189, 190, 191, 192, 193, 194, 195, 196, 197, 198, 199, 200, 201, 202, 203, 204, 205, 206, 207, 208, 209, 210, 211, 212, 213, 214, 215, 216, 217, 218, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 225, 226, 227, 228, 229, 230, 231, 232, 233, 234, 235, 236, 237, 238, 239, 240, 241, 242, 243, 244, 245, 246, 247, 248, 249, 250, 251, 252, 253, 254, 255, 256, 257, 258, 259, 260, 261, 262, 263, 264, 265, 266, 267, 268, 269, 270, 271, 272, 273, 274, 275, 276, 277, 278, 279, 280, 281, 282, 283, 284, 285, 286, 287, 288, 289, 290, 291, 292, 293, 294, 295, 296, 297, 298, 299, 300, 301, 302, 303, 304, 305, 306, 307, 308, 309, 310, 311, 312, 313, 314, 315, 316, 317, 318, 319, 320, 321, 322, 323, 324, 325, 326, 327, 328, 329, 330, 331, 332, 333, 334, 335, 336, 337, 338, 339, 340, 341, 342, 343, 344, 345, 346, 347, 348, 349, 350, 351, 352, 353, 354, 355, 356, 357, 358, 359, 360, 361, 362, 363, 364, 365, 366, 367, 368, 369, 370, 371, 372, 373, 374, 375, 376, 377, 378, 379, 380, 381, 382, 383, 384, 385, 386, 387, 388, 389, 390, 391, 392, 393, 394, 395, 396, 397, 398, 399, 400, 401, 402, 403, 404, 405, 406, 407, 408, 409, 410, 411, 412, 413, 414, 415, 416, 417, 418, 419, 420, 421, 422, 423, 424, 425, 426, 427, 428, 429, 430, 431, 432, 433, 434, 435, 436, 437, 438, 439, 440, 441, 442, 443, 444, 445, 446, 447, 448, 449, 450, 451, 452, 453, 454, 455, 456, 457, 458, 459, 460, 461, 462, 463, 464, 465, 466, 467, 468, 469, 470, 471, 472, 473, 474, 475, 476, 477, 478, 479, 480, 481, 482, 483, 484, 485, 486, 487, 488, 489, 490, 491, 492, 493, 494, 495, 496, 497, 498, 499, 500, 501, 502, 503, 504, 505, 506, 507, 508, 509, 510, 511, 512, 513, 514, 515, 516, 517, 518, 519, 520, 521, 522, 523, 524, 525, 526, 527, 528, 529, 530, 531, 532, 533, 534, 535, 536, 537, 538, 539, 540, 541, 542, 543, 544, 545, 546, 547, 548, 549, 550, 551, 552, 553, 554, 555, 556, 557, 558, 559, 560, 561, 562, 563, 564, 565, 566, 567, 568, 569, 570, 571, 572, 573, 574, 575, 576, 577, 578, 579, 580, 581, 582, 583, 584, 585, 586, 587, 588, 589, 590, 591, 592, 593, 594, 595, 596, 597, 598, 599, 600, 601, 602, 603, 604, 605, 606, 607, 608, 609, 610, 611, 612, 613, 614, 615, 616, 617, 618, 619, 620, 621, 622, 623, 624, 625, 626, 627, 628, 629, 630, 631, 632, 633, 634, 635, 636, 637, 638, 639, 640, 641, 642, 643, 644, 645, 646, 647, 648, 649, 650, 651, 652, 653, 654, 655, 656, 657, 658, 659, 660, 661, 662, 663, 664, 665, 666, 667, 668, 669, 670, 671, 672, 673, 674, 675, 676, 677, 678, 679, 680, 681, 682, 683, 684, 685, 686, 687, 688, 689, 690, 691, 692, 693, 694, 695, 696, 697, 698, 699, 700, 701, 702, 703, 704, 705, 706, 707, 708, 709, 710, 711, 712, 713, 714, 715, 716, 717, 718, 719, 720, 721, 722, 723, 724, 725, 726, 727, 728, 729, 730, 731, 732, 733, 734, 735, 736, 737, 738,

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